
AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 
Village Hall Auditorium 

9915 – 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI   
February 4, 2013 

6:00 p.m. 

 

1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 

4. Minutes of Meetings – January 7 and 21, 2013 
 

5. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received 

from the public and there may be limited discussion on the information received.  However, no action will be 
taken under public comments.) 

 

6. Administrator’s Report 
 

7. New Business 

 
A. Consider Resolution #13-04 relating to the discontinuance of 93rd Street 

between Lakeshore Drive and 3rd Avenue. 
 

B. Consider a Professional Services Agreement for the design of the Chateau 

Eau Plaines Subdivision Phase 1 stormwater improvements. 
 

C. Consider a RecPlex Sponsorship Agreement with Lynch Chevrolet of Pleasant 
Prairie for the Fitness Center. 
 

D. Consider a draw on each of the two Westfield Development Letters of Credit. 
 

E. Consider Operator Licenses Applications on file. 
 

8.   Village Board Comments 
 

9.   Consider entering into Executive Session pursuant to Section 19.95(1)(g) Wis. 

Stats. to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering 
oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with 
respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved. 
 

10.  Return to Open Session and Adjournment 
 

 
The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please 
contact the Village Clerk, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

9915 - 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI   

January 7, 2013 

6:00 p.m. 
 

 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, January 7, 2013.  

Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Monica 

Yuhas, Clyde Allen and Mike Serpe.  Steve Kumorkiewicz was excused.  Also present were Michael 

Pollocoff, Village Administrator; Tom Shircel, Assistant Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, Community 

Development Director; Kathy Goessl, Finance Director; Dave Mogensen, Interim Police Chief; Doug 

McElmury, Fire & Rescue Chief; Mike Spence, Village Engineer; John Steinbrink Jr., Public Works 

Director; Carol Willke, Human Resources Director; and Jane M. Romanowski, Village Clerk.  Two 

citizens attended the meeting. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. ROLL CALL 

 

4. MINUTES OF MEETINGS -  DECEMBER 17, 2012 
 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Motion to approve. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Monica, second by Clyde.  Any discussion?   

 

 YUHAS MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 17, 2012 

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING AS PRESENTED IN THEIR WRITTEN FORM; SECONDED BY 

ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

 A. Proposed 2013 Sewer Utility and Water Utility budgets. 

  1) Citizen Comments. 

  2) Closing of Budget Hearing. 

  3) Board of Trustee Comments. 

  4) Resolution #13-01 relating to the adoption of 2013 Sewer Utility Budget. 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

2 

  5) Resolution #13-02 relating to the adoption of 2013 Water Utility Budget. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Why don’t you go ahead and start, Kathy. 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

Mr. President and the Village Board, I’m here to present, with the help of John Steinbrink, Jr., the 

sewer and water budget that we propose for the 2013 budget year.  This slide shows a summary 

of the budget and compares it to the 2012 budget.  The revenue here is looking at for the sewer 

utility going down about $157,000.  And the main reason for that reduction is due to a large 

industrial customer being charged for sewer when it only had a water only meter on that location 

at their facility.  And that was reflected in the 2012 budget, therefore we are reducing from the 

2012 down to 2013.  Otherwise, most of the other revenues are staying stable for the sewer utility, 

and there’s no rate increase budgeted. 

 

Operating expenses are up $138,000, mainly depreciation of $99,000 which is a noncash item.  

And the new programs that will be discussed a little bit later of around almost $40,000, offset by 

anticipated reduction in treatment expenses of almost $50,000.  Non-operating is interest expense 

and debt netted against interest income on investments.  The majority of the decrease it attributed 

to the interest expense going down in the sewer utility.  Cash is estimated at year end to be up 

$172,000 compared to what we’re going to be looking at ending 2012 with. 

 

This is a pie chart of our sewer operating revenues.  And you can see the biggest chunk of it is 

residential which accounts for about $2.6 million of revenue or 57 percent.  The next biggest 

category is industrial accounting for 24 percent or a little over $1.1 million.  This includes our 

industrial surcharging of industrial customers.  And then our third largest component is 

commercial which is 18 percent or $.8 million of revenue.  And the smallest category is public 

authority at less than 1 percent. 

 

As for operating expense our biggest operating expense is treatment accounting for 40 percent of 

our revenue for our expenses.  For this year we’re looking at budgeting $1.8 million or 40 percent 

of expenses.  This is Kenosha Water Utility’s charge to the Village for sewer treatment.  All of 

our sewage goes to the City of Kenosha Water Utility for treatment. 

 

Depreciation is our next biggest component which is $1.4 million or 31 percent of our 

expenditures.  This is recognized in the cost of the infrastructure over its useful life.  It’s a 

noncash expense when recognized.  Infrastructures are either donated by developers or installed 

and paid by special assessments. 

 

Personnel is our third biggest expense at $.7 million or 15 percent.  This includes both operational 

labor, clerical and administrative labor.  Other is 10 percent or a little less than half a million 

dollars.  It includes electric for $74,000 and also contractual services, supplies, phone, etc.  And 

the last charge which is accounting only for 4 percent for $163,000 is use of the vehicles and 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

3 

equipment operating and maintained by our fleet internal service fund being used by the sewer 

utility. 

 

This is a listing of the new programs in this budget.  There’s three new programs that were 

requested, and they are all being recommended this evening.  The first one is development of a 

lateral insurance program.  This is hiring a consultant to actually recommend how the program 

should run.  It’s actually charging residents a monthly fee to purchase an insurance so that if their 

lateral fails they can get that replaced. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Private lateral. 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

Private lateral replaced.  So this is all stuff to do with what’s on their property, the private lateral, 

not anything to do with us.  So this year we’re looking at hiring a consultant to review this and 

figure out how it should run to best benefit the residents as well as the Village in general.  And 

then utility analyst training for $2,500 which is split between sewer and water.  It’s additional 

training for a position within the utilities.  And then the finance, HR, payroll software conversion 

and training.  This is their allocation, and all of our enterprise funds got allocated a portion of the 

operating expense of purchasing the software which is conversion and training and also the cost 

of the actual software which you’ll see in the capital section next.  So this totals almost $40,000. 

 

The next section is capital, and I’ll have John explain the requests for capital.  All capital requests 

that were submitted is being recommended for approval. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, there’s eight projects that were under consideration for 

the sewer budget this year.  The first one is a continuation of our Cooper Road rehab to reduce I 

& I.  It’s a lining of the sanitary sewer.  Crews are actually doing it this week.  And then we plan 

on bidding it out and doing it again later on this spring.  They’re doing around 1,900 feet of 

sanitary sewer rehab.  And so instead of having to go through and excavate the road and the 

sanitary sewer and dig up the excavation and all the costs of restoration, they can actually go into 

the existing sewer and re-line it.  So actually it makes a new lining, it eliminates infiltration, and 

it gives it a little bit of structural integrity.  So we’re looking to continue that again at $100,000 

this year.  So the $85,000 is just a continuation of it from last year.  And then the $100,000 

completing the program for this year.  And then we plan on doing $100,000 every year until the 

project is complete. 

 

The second one is the Des Plaines River Corridor Trail. $100,000 should get us a continuation of 

completing that trail across the path and so we have access for our sewer crews to maintain an 

interceptor sewer line.  Rebuilding of lift stations is our lift station in Carol Beach.  Our crews in 

house will be going through and doing the work at the rebuilding, updating pumps, motors, 

controls.  We do it in house so we can save some money.   



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

4 

 

Heritage Valley lift station abandonment $50,000 is for an easement acquisition and planning and 

design.  And then we plan on actually going through next year in 2014 and doing the actual 

construction.  Once we built the interceptor line from Sewer D out to the south it now gave us a 

conduit to eliminate a lift station.  And so we’ll save all of the maintenance charges.  It would 

probably cost us about $100,000 to rehab that lift station.  It’s been there about 18 years now.  So 

we would eliminate that lift station altogether and many maintenance costs that come along with 

that. 

 

A generator at lift station we’re looking at putting a lift station in Carol Beach Unit A, having a 

generator out there.  We’re proposing to do one every year to provide better service to our 

residents, repave sewer sites.  We have some sewer sites that are pretty beat up, and we’re 

looking at just paving one site per year.  And then the second one is a finance payroll and HR 

software allocation to the sewer utility. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

The lift station is that $30,000 for one generator or more? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Yes, it’s $30,000 for one generator.  The generator itself is around $20,000.  And then by the time 

we run the new conduits, control panels, our in house electrician’s time to wire it all up, we’re 

planning around like $28,000 or $29,000.  But we built a little bit extra in just to make sure we’re 

under budget. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

How many more lift stations are going to be in need of generators? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

I believe we have three more left. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Good. 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

So this is a listing of our capital totaling about $459,000.  Next, a look at the water utility in 

summary.  This is a summary compared to the 2012 budget to 2013 proposed and the dollar 

change.  Operating revenue is looking at going up slightly by a little less than $15,000.  Operating 

expenses we’re looking at an increase of $269,000.  The majority of that is, again, depreciation 

which is a noncash item at $151,000, and new programs at $28,261 which will be explained a 

little bit later. 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

5 

 

Net non-operating expenses is interest income or interest expense on debt offset by interest 

income.  The increase is due to interest income -- the interest expense is going down more than 

the interest income is going.  So it’s giving us a net increase of $25,000 because of the decrease 

in interest expense. 

 

Transfers is increasing $70,000, and this is all because of an increase in the amount of the tax 

equivalent being paid by the water utility to the Village of Pleasant Prairie general government.  

This is a formula set by the Public Service Commission.  It takes the value of the assets of the 

water utility times the mill rate that we calculate for our property tax real estate taxpayers.  And 

the value in the water utility did not go down like it did in the Village in terms of assessed value.  

Therefore, with the rate going up the tax equivalent goes up.  Cash balance we’re projecting an 

increase of $172,000 based on this budget up to $992,000. 

 

This is a breakout of revenue by category or by classes of customers.  The biggest class of 

customers is our residential, similar or the same as sewer being our largest customer category.  It 

accounts for 37 percent of our revenue.  And its dollar-wise $1.4 million.  Industrial is the next 

biggest category at 28 percent or $1.1 million.  And some of our biggest customers is Wisconsin 

Energy Power Plant, Fair Oaks Farms and Olds Products accounting for over half of that revenue. 

 

Fire protection is our next biggest category at 22 percent.  It includes both our private fire 

protection and our public fire protection for a total of a little less than a million dollars for 

revenue.  Commercial is our fourth category at $.4 million or 11 percent.  Top customers St. 

Catherine’s Hospital, Wisconsin Energy, Westwood, Timber Ridge.  Public authority is our 

smallest customer base at only 2 percent or $70,000. 

 

2013 water operating expenses similar to the sewer utility with sewer treatment being our largest 

expense.   On our water side purchased water is our largest expense accounting for 42 percent of 

our expenses or $1.5 million.  And we purchase our water from the Kenosha Water Utility.  

Depreciation, just like in sewer, is our second largest expense at 29 percent or $1 million.  Again, 

this is recognized in the cost of the infrastructure over its useful life, and this is a noncash 

expense. 

 

Personnel is 16 percent or $.6 million including operating personnel, administrative and clerical.  

Next category is 11 percent is other accounting for $375,000 which includes electric.  That 

accounts for one fourth at $95,000 plus contractual services, minor equipment, office supplies and 

phone.  And the smallest category just like in sewer is the fleet internal service fund allocation of 

2 percent or $75,000.  This is charging the water utility for the use of the vehicles which are 

owned by the fleet internal service fund. 

 

This is our request for new programs.  The top section has three new programs that are being 

recommended, whereas down on the bottom is a new program request that is not being 

recommended.  On the top there’s utility analyst training which is the same as it was on the sewer 

side, $2,500 split.  Washing the water tower’s exterior, and this is $10,000.  This is washing one 

water tower.  John can probably explain which water tower it is this year, but it goes -- and then 

we’re looking at another three, four years of similar amounts to wash the towers around the 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

6 

Village.  And then, again, you see the allocation of the finance, HR software conversion and 

training for a little less than $10,000. 

 

Not approved is a hosting fee for remote water meter reads of $6,000.  We removed that from the 

budget.  There was a capital project to install a tower to be able to remote read from a central 

location.  But currently there’s only 20 percent of our water meters that are on remote water read 

meters.  So we are going to push that project off for two years until we get close to 50 percent of 

our meters on remote read so that we can capture more of the readings that way before we start 

spending the expense on hosting fees which is $6,000 actually accounted for only half a year of 

hosting fees.  They were estimated about $12,000 a year to host so that we can pull our meters at 

any moment, know what all the readings are throughout the Village with all the remote readers. 

 

And this is a listing of our water utility budget approved capital.  The only one that’s not on this 

list, as I said, was actual tower to read the remote readers.  Other than that we are recommending 

all of the projects listed, and John can explain the projects that are listed here. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, the first project that we have is painting a water tower.  

We’re proposing to repaint the 165 water tower which is around the 5700 block of 165.  It’s due 

to be painted.  It doesn’t need a total blast off of paint, just a scuffing up, and then some minor 

repairs on the inside and painting the interior dry and the wet of the water tower. 

 

The second one is upgrading the MXU readers.  That’s the remote reader that Kathy was talking 

about.  We’re looking to put in around 400 more of them this coming up year.  We have around 

800 in our system so far with around 4,000 meters total.  One of the advantages that we have, and 

this will be really nice for some of our industrial users, is that we’ll get to track an hour by hour 

read how much water that they’re using, and so we can better supply or demand to our customers.   

 

The third one that we have is replacing booster pump control at Sheridan lift station.  We have 

200 horsepower it’s called a soft start.  And you really can’t do much control of it.  It’s either 100 

percent on or 100 percent off.  And so we’re proposing to change that with a variable speed drive 

on that, and that’s going to better help us maintain our pressure within our water system and 

hopefully save some energy also. 

 

The fourth one that we have is our water meter upgrade program to some OMNI meters.  The 

meters that we have right now are made out of brass, and they have a higher lead content.  PSC 

passed a new law beginning in 2014 there’s a very small amount of lead that’s allowed within any 

piece of the water utility system.  And with the meters being brass that’s something that’s very 

important.  We have to change the meters out on a four year rotation.  And so we’re changing 

them out probably about half a dozen of them per year until we have them all done which we’ve 

got to have done by 2018.  So we’re kind of chipping away at that year by year versus doing it all 

at one time. 

 

Paving a water site, the same as we have our sewer sites, a lot of the asphalt at some of our sites is 

broken up, and it just needs to be replaced and maintained.  So we’re going to do one of these 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

7 

every other year.  Installing a pressure reducing valve on Sheridan Road -  We’re looking at doing 

just that, putting in a pressure reducing valve just to the south of our booster station on Sheridan 

Road that’s going to better regulate the pressure that we have to our Carol Beach area.  When the 

400 horsepower pumps turn on at that Sheridan Road lift station it gives a large pressure increase 

especially at that Carol Beach area.  And so we’re looking at reducing that pressure to a 

manageable size.  And so we’ll still provide a good service to our customers with the lack of 

having anything being damaged within their home or within the main itself. 

 

The next one is the Travis City hydrant replacement.  We have some older hydrants that we’re 

just replacing as they fail.  So we’re hoping to replace three or four of them next year as they fail, 

as the bolts go bad.  And that gives us better fire protection.  And the final one is the water 

allocation for our finance and HR and payroll software. 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

So that’s the summary of all of the water capital projects that we’re looking at or recommending.  

The next slides are summaries of some different statistics across all of our enterprise funds.  The 

first one I’d like to share with you is the 2013 principal outstanding.  This would be at the end of 

2013, how much debt will be in each of our utilities.  Our sewer utility will have the largest 

amount of debt remaining at a little over $7 million.  And the water utility will have $370,000 and 

actually be debt free in 2015.  And the sanitary sewer sanitation that’s $170,000, it will be debt 

free by 2014.  The clean water utility and the fleet internal service fund as zero debt at this point 

and no plans to borrow. 

 

These are our capital assets that we maintain in these utilities.  And this is the that we’re looking 

at for ending this year, 2012.  You can see the sewer utility has the most assets at a little over $52 

million.  And then water utility a little less than $43 million.  Sanitation doesn’t have many assets.  

It’s basically their storage garage and some recycling and garbage bins for a little less than 

$600,000.  And then our clean water utility has a little over $23 million of assets.  And our fleet 

internal service fund which has all of our vehicles for utilities and public works currently has a 

little over $3 million. Currently with all these utilities we are valued at $122 million down 

slightly from last year due to limited additions to any of these assets and to depreciation reducing 

the value. 

 

We’re always concerned about the amount of cash each of these utilities has so we can continue 

cash operations and be able to pay our debt and our bills.  This is the cash summary of our five 

enterprise funds, and their 2013 estimated ending cashing balance.  The sewer utility we’re 

required to have a separate fund for sewer replacement, and currently that fund needs to be valued 

at a little over $1.1 million.  And then our sewer utility the rest of the cash we’re estimating at 

$1.7, almost $1.8 million in the sewer utility. 

 

In the water utility we’re looking at a little less than $1 million.  And the clean water has nicely 

accumulated some funds for future replacement of infrastructure at $2.4 million.  Sanitary has 

cash of a little over $200,000.  And then our fleet internal service fund has a little over a million 

to help replace vehicles in the future for both the public works and the utilities.  But also during 

the general government budgeting process we added some of the other departments that had 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

8 

vehicles like IT, engineering, inspection and then also RecPlex to that.  So this fund of a little 

over $1 million is for future replacement of all vehicles in the Village and equipment except for 

fire and rescue and for police vehicles.  So overall in these five enterprise funds we have a total 

cash unreserved of $6.4 million, and $1.1 million reserved, and we’re up about a little over $1 

million from what we estimated ending last year at or 2012 at. 

 

What’s important is this cash is used to help us run our daily business for operating purposes to 

pay our bills, pay our employees.  But another important reason to have a cash reserve is to 

replace future infrastructure and not have to borrow for replacing in the future.  And this kind of 

gives you the picture of where we are in terms of cash versus our capital assets, what percentage 

do we have set aside to help us replace these assets in the future.  You can see over to the right 

hand side that the sanitation and fleet internal service are the best funded in terms of cash reserves 

to help us replace future infrastructure.  Whereas our other three utilities are pretty low in their 

percentage to capital assets with water being the lowest at 2 percent.  Then we have 6 percent for 

sewer and 10 percent for clean water.  Our goal for those three utilities is to eventually try to get 

those up to the 35 percent that the other two utilities are at to be able to replace future 

infrastructure without borrowing.  But currently we don’t want to raise rates to be able to do that.  

So this is where we stand right now. 

 

As for sewer and water we are not recommending any rate increases.  But we’re currently 

intervening in the Kenosha Water case which they’re asking for a rate increase.  We don’t know 

what percentage they’re asking for, but we know if we wait until the end of the process that we 

would not be able to make many changes.  But if we intervene during the mid to beginning of the 

process we might be able to make an impact for our customers to be able to either hopefully 

maintain our rates or have a very slight increase, but maybe even hopefully reduce our rates.  But 

it all depends on the Public Service Commission.  We have hired a consulted from [inaudible] to 

help us with this and also legal counsel to help us through this process.  We thought that was 

good money spent at this time to help us do what we can for our customers and any future 

customers.  We’ve lost customers because of our water rates being the highest and our sewer rates 

being one of the highest in the State of Wisconsin.  Whereas Kenosha brags that their water rates 

and their sewer rates are one of the lowest in the State of Wisconsin.  So we don’t get any special 

treatment for being their largest customer.  We actually pay more than some of their bigger 

commercial customers.  So that’s in the process right now, and we’ll keep you updated on that. 

 

So that’s my presentation of the sewer and water budget and what’s being recommended by 

myself and the Village Administrator. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you, Kathy, thank you, John.  You want to open it up now to citizens’ comments? 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

There were no sign ups tonight. 

 

John Steinbrink: 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

9 

 

Okay, I’m going to open it up to citizens’ comments.  Anybody wishing to speak on the sewer 

utility and water utility budgets?  Anybody wishing to speak?  Anybody wishing to speak?  

Hearing none, I’m going to close the budget hearing and open it up to the Board of Trustees. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Kathy, good presentation. I think out of this presentation I’d like the statement that Kathy made 

about the intervention by the Village with the City’s proposed water rate increase.  I’ve said it in 

the past and I’ll say it again.  They’re using us as a cash cow, and I think it’s been going on for a 

little bit too long.  They had the opportunity years ago to create a regional water utility, and they 

elected to go to the wholesale route of which the residents of Pleasant Prairie are paying dearly.  I 

hope that the intervention goes well at least in the favor of the residents of Pleasant Prairie and 

the Village.  So good job, Kathy and good luck in the future. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Thank you, Mr. President.  And thank you, Kathy and John.  I have a couple questions, and I 

don’t know who can answer them or if even Mike’s the appropriate person to answer them.  But 

our debt in sewer is $7 million.  When will the bulk of that come down?  And if you don’t have 

an answer right away that’s okay, at a later date.  I guess the questions I’m going to raise will be 

okay to get an answer later.  I just have little concerns because our assets being $52 million, seven 

seems to be a little high.  When do we anticipate getting that down?  Obviously the goal in the 

future is to create our cash flow to be able to maintain all the sewers at no tax increase. 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

So I believe the debt schedule goes through like 2020, but it has a couple balloon payments in this 

next seven years.  So we’re going to have to refinance out those balloon payments to keep our 

debt at around $1 million I believe that we were running.  So we’re probably looking at more like 

2025, 2023 or 2025. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Sewer is just by [inaudible] the improvements that are -- just by its nature the improvements that 

are required for sanitary sewer are far more expensive than water.  I mean just from the 

distribution or the collection infrastructure to the major collector lines that go to the City it 

requires a lot more maintenance.  It’s just more intense, and a lot of that work comes back.  In the 

scheme of things some of it’s 20 years old and maybe a little bit less, but the life of the collection 

lines is relatively long.  

 

John has been doing a good job of getting the numerous lift stations we have back up to speed, 

get them working right.  But we have the same ongoing issue with Kenosha Water Utility on the 

basis of how we’re billed.  And although they’re not proposing a rate increase at this time that we 

would probably take some action with, but what happens with the Kenosha Water Utility with 

sanitary sewer is we’re billed for the flow that goes through the meter at 7
th
 Avenue by and large 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

10 

and some other places where we’re metered as well.  And at that point we’re also metered for the 

strength of the sewage.  If you’re a customer of the City of Kenosha the strength of the sewage is 

averaged across the entire City of Kenosha utility.  And the same thing with the inflow and 

infiltration that the City has.  Because every sewer main in the world, I mean it’s a matter of 

degree, but every sewer main is going to have inflow and infiltration.  In Pleasant Prairie we pay 

for every drop of infiltration that accrues in our system and goes to the meter.  Again, in the City 

that cost is averaged out. 

 

So when we look at how the sewer system was constructed, it was constructed in accordance with 

the master plan that was prepared by SEWRPC that showed how everything was going to be 

going to the lakefront as part of our regional utility.  And had that plan not been in place, had we 

stayed with our treatment plants and did something else, the sewer utility would look a lot 

different.  Because we grew the main infrastructure, the 30 inch main that comes out of 7
th
 

Avenue, the 30 inch main that goes down 165, and then we grew from that.  So all the big pipe is 

in place, and that’s the earliest pipe we have in place.  So it’s going to be a while before we have 

enough customers to retire the impact of that.   

 

Every time somebody hooks up to the system they pay the $1,600.  And as there was growth in 

the Village that helped because there was more and more connection fees that is going to help 

retire some of that debt.  That’s why that debt is higher.  The amount of oversizing that we’re 

going to be paying off for probably the next 10 or 15 years, as well as we could be paying more, 

50 percent more than what a typical sewer user would have been paying had it been a regional 

utility.  And as with the water utility we’re going to wait for the next rate increase.  That’s a little 

bit different action that we’d file, but we’d still file it with the Public Service Commission.  But 

as the Kenosha utility’s largest customer, larger than any other customer they have, we pay the 

highest rate.  It’s an inverted scale for the Village, and it’s a profit center for the water utility. 

 

I hate to say that we’re going to have to work on that, but that isn’t the whole thing.  Even if we 

were to achieve a good scale rate with the Kenosha Water Utility we’re 5,000 customers paying 

for the sanitary sewer system that could collect 30 million gallons a day, and we’re probably 

pushing 3 to 4 million gallons a day.  So there’s a lot of excess capacity that we’re paying for.  As 

we grew that out that’s just the way it is. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Thank you.  That’s the exact answer I was looking for.  Thank you very much.  And it’s not all 

negatives.  I’m happy the water, obviously, has done very well with the debt retiring in 2014.  

That’s good to see.  My only other concern was is there a plan to get enough in reserve to start on 

the sewer replacement and things like that, and obviously you’ve answer that very well.  So thank 

you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Other Board comments? 

 

Monica Yuhas: 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

11 

 

John, I just had two questions for you.  Regarding the washing of the tower which tower is that 

going to be this year? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

We’re looking at doing the Big Oaks water tower. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

And then how many years is there in between a washing? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

We’re looking at doing the washing I believe every four years.  And so we’re going to be 

alternating.  Every year that we’re not painting a tower we’re going to be washing a tower.  So 

we’ll be washing one about every other year. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

And then my other question is with the Travis City hydrant replacements how many did you say 

that was, three or two? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Yeah, we’re looking at hopefully three.  We really don’t replace them unless they fail.  For some 

reason historically they’ve been failing in the amount of two or three per year.  And so when we 

do our exercise program if the bolts start leaking, if they won’t shut off, they won’t seep, they 

won’t drain, instead of going through and doing a repair on an old hydrant we just do the 

excavation and then replace it with a new Mueller hydrant. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

And are all the hydrants the same make and brand throughout the Village? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

They’re not yet.  That’s our intention is to have them all be Muellers at the end of the day.  And 

so we’re just slowly replacing the ones that are an older model and older style, the ones that 

aren’t doing good with the hot soils that we have.  And so hopefully within 10 or 15 years all of 

those will be gone, and we’ll just have the newer style hydrants. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Thank you.  Wonderful presentation, Kathy, John.  Good budget. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

12 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Thank you. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

I’ll make a motion to approve Resolution 13-01, 2013 sewer utility budget. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Clyde, second by Mike.  Any further discussion on that item?   

 

 ALLEN M OVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTIN #13-01 RELATING TO THE ADOPTION 

OF THE 2013 SEWER UTILITY BUDGET; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Move approval of 13-02 relating to the water utility. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Monica.  Any discussion on 13-02?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #13-02 RELATING TO THE ADOPTION 

OF THE 2013 WATER UTILITY BUDGET; SECONDED BY YUHAS; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

That concludes our public hearings for this evening. 

 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

The first speaker Brenda Dahl. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

13 

Brenda we ask you to give us your name and address for the record. 

 

Brenda Dahl: 

 

Good evening.  My name is Brenda Dahl.  My address is 4273 113
th
 Street in the Village of 

Pleasant Prairie.  And I’m here tonight to introduce myself.  I think many of you may be aware 

that I announced by candidacy for Pleasant Prairie Municipal Court Judge.  And I wanted to start 

out by thanking Judge George Easton for his many years of faithful service to the Village. 

 

But a bit about me.  I currently have my own law practice, and I have practiced for over 11 years 

with the last 7 of those years practicing in Kenosha County.  In addition to my private practice 

I’m appointed as a guardian ad litem by the Kenosha County Circuit Court judges.  And in that 

position I represent children and the elderly and the disabled.  So between my private practice and 

my guardian ad litem position I’m essentially in the courtroom almost every day of the week. 

 

Prior to practicing in Kenosha I worked for a large law firm in Milwaukee where I specialized in 

real estate law.  And I was involved in municipal law which included drafting and researching 

ordinances and zoning laws.  I’m also on the faculty as an adjunct professor at Concordia 

University.  I teach law classes there. 

 

I grew up in Kenosha.  I graduated from Tremper High School, and I earned my law degree from 

Marquette University.  I graduated there with a law degree magna cum laude.  And my 

undergraduate degree is in business administration.  I graduated from the University of Wisconsin 

Madison with honors, and I had a double major in marketing and risk management there. 

 

I live in the Village with my husband, Steve Dahl.  We have three children together.  We live in 

Mission Hills.  My husband actually was a paid on call firefighter for the Village before he was 

hired as a City of Kenosha fireman.  We have three children.  All three of our children attend 

Prairie Lane Elementary.  I have Tyler who is in fourth grade, and then I have twin girls, Allison 

and Caitlin who are in kindergarten at Prairie Lane.  Some of you might also know my dad, Arlen 

Baumgarten.  He’s been involved in the Village with the Prairie Riders snowmobile club as the 

trail master for the Village.  So he knows a lot of the landowners here. 

 

So in closing, I just wanted to again thank Judge George Easton.  I think that he’s done a really 

great job of running his courtroom efficiently and effectively.  And if I’m elected I would plan to 

continue in his footsteps and run the courtroom in a similar fashion.  I would use a common sense 

approach on the bench, also paying special attention to minimizing costs for our taxpayers 

wherever possible.  So I would love your support in the upcoming election, and I would love your 

vote.  If there’s anything else that you would like to discuss with me further I would be glad to 

answer any questions that you have, and thank you for your time. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you, Brenda. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

14 

 

No additional signups tonight, Mr. President. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Anyone else wishing to speak under citizens comments? 

 

7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT – None. 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 A. Consider Ordinance #13-01 to amend Chapter 370 of the Municipal Code 

relating to building permit fees. 
 

Mike Spence: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, we did a review during the budgeting process of some 

of our fees, and we looked at our fees, and we try to keep the fees if possible consistent with 

generally the area and also the City of Kenosha.  So the fees that we have here will help to bring 

in some additional revenue.  And this is particularly important in the fact that we did lose revenue 

because the State passed a law we can no longer charge an electrical licensing fee.  So that was a 

source of revenue for us.  So the changes in the fees that I’m recommending should offset or 

hopefully increase the revenue that we would have lost from those licensing fees. 

 

Specifically we are looking at raising the single family residential fees for new electrical service 

from $150 to $180.  Electric wire extension or rewiring increasing that to $60, or increasing it 

from $50 to $60 minimum.  For two family residential we’re looking at increasing the new 

electric fee from $300 to $360.  Other fees the minimum permit fee for commercial increase that 

from $75 to $100.  So those are the increases that I’m recommending.  And, again, these are in 

line with fees that are charged with the City of Kenosha so we’re not charging more than our 

neighbor to the north.  So I recommend that these fees, the ordinance be changed to include these 

fee increases.  I’d be glad to answer any questions. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Any questions? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

How did it come about that we’re not allowed to charge for an electrical permit.  Is that a lobby 

effort? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Yeah. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

15 

Michael Serpe: 

 

You know whenever that happens that enrages the hell out of me.  Whenever that happens I think 

we should be allowed to violate that law and then let them take us to court.  That just bothers me.  

That just bothers me that a lobbyist would go to Madison, give them all kinds of money, and then 

we have to suffer the consequences.   

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Any other comments or questions? 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Motion to approve Ordinance 13-01. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Monica, second by Clyde.  Is there any further discussion?   

 

 YUHAS MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE #13-01 TO AMEND CHAPTER 370 OF THE 

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO BUILDING PERMIT FEE; SECONDED BY ALLEN; 

MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

 B. Consider Weights and Measures annual assessments July 1, 2011 through 

June 30, 2012. 
 

Mike Spence: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, on an annual basis the State goes through a number of 

the businesses in the Village and verifies their measurement and their scales and their scanners to 

see that they’re reading properly.  So the State charges us $4,800 to do this testing every year.  

This year they tested 1,097 different samples throughout the number of the businesses in the 

Village.  And basically what we do is we take the total cost that we have to pay the State by the 

number of tests, and then we charge back to the business that cost.  

 

In addition to that we also charge a license fee for the businesses in the Village and also 

administrative fee.  So this then recovers the costs that we pay to the State as well as our 

operating costs.  So I’m recommending approval of this schedule.  And then if that schedule is 

approved then the bills will be sent out to the various businesses.  So if there are any questions I’d 

be glad to answer them. 

 

John Steinbrink: 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

16 

 

Mike, there’s quite a time lag in there.  Is that what we use as -- 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

Yeah, what happens is we don’t get the bill from the State until -- I think we get it in like October 

or whatever.  And it’s just a question of getting it through.  This year I was a little bit later.  I 

forgot that we had to come before the Board.  Normally it’s at the end of the year. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

We’ll see if we get a lobby effort to eliminate that.  Move approval. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Clyde.  Any further discussion?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE THE WEIGHTS AND MEASURES ANNUAL 

 ASSESSMENTS JULY 1, 2011 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2012; SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION  

CARRIED 4-0. 

 

 C. Consider the request of Daniel and Rebecca Ruth and Jeffrey and Elizabeth 

Crabtree to release an ingress and egress easement on a portion of Lot 2 of Certified 

Survey Map (CSM) 2503 to service Lot 3 of said CSM that is no longer needed since 

each lot has its own access to 47th Avenue.  
 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, this is a request for a release of an access easement 

basically on a portion of Lot 2 of CSM 2503.  Daniel and Rebecca Ruth own the property located 

at 11315 47
th
 Avenue, Lot 2 of the CSM.  And Jeffrey and Elizabeth Crabtree are constructing a 

new home just to the south of them on Lot 3 of CSM 2503.  The property owners are requesting 

to release the ingress access easement basically crossing from one property to the other because 

the Crabtree’s were able to obtain a fill permit from the Wisconsin DNR and obtain their own 

access directly to 47
th
 Avenue for the new home that they are in the process of building right now.  

And since this easement is no longer needed because they have separate access points to 47
th
 

Avenue, they are requesting that this easement be released from the certified survey map from 

when it was originally approved.  The staff and the Plan Commission recommend approval of this 

release of this easement subject to recording this release of this document at the Register of 

Deed’s office. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

17 

 

So moved. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Monica, second by Clyde.  Any further discussion?   

 

 YUHAS MOVED TO APPROVE THE REQUEST OF DANIEL AND REBECCA RUTH 

AND JEFFREY AND ELIZABETH CRABTREE TO RELEASE AN INGRESS AND EGRESS 

EASEMENT ON A PORTION OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP (CSM) 2503 TO 

SERVICE LOT 3 OF SAID CSM THAT IS NO LONGER NEEDED SINCE EACH LOT HAS ITS 

OWN ACCESS TO 47TH AVENUE, SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH BY 

STAFF; SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

 D. Consider adoption of a Post-Issuance Tax Compliance Policy for Tax-

Exempt and Tax Advantaged Obligations. 
 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

Mr. President and the Village Board, attached in your packet is a policy for a post issuance 

compliance policy.  This policy sets forth specific policies for the Village to follow to comply 

with post-issuance debt requirements.  So when we issue tax exempt debt there’s certain 

procedures that must happen before the debt’s issues, as well as after until the debt is actually 

retired.  So this policy is recommended to be adopted so that it’s an advantage with the IRS that if 

we have a policy on file if we do get audited they will treat us more favorably if we have a policy 

in place.   

 

So this policy outlines the different areas that we need to comply with.  Some of the areas are the 

actual issuance of the obligation and the documents that must be kept on file from the actual 

issuance.  There’s a section on arbitrage which means that we as a Village cannot make more on 

interest income on the money that we borrow than we’re paying out in interest expense.  And if 

we do we need to refund that difference to the IRS.  So we need to keep track to make sure we do 

not earn more interest than we’re paying out which is really not a problem in the last couple of 

years based on the low interest rates. 

 

Also it outlines private activity concerns and the policies we must follow to monitor and track if 

we do use the bond proceed for private use or make payments out of that for any facilities.  And 

then another section in here is qualified tax exempt obligations.  Each year to be qualified tax 

exempt obligations you must not issue more than $10 million otherwise it gets you a different 

interest rate.  So we have to monitor and make sure that when we issue debt that we know what 

we’re going to issue in the future so we know how to actually sell the debt up front when we first 

do our first issue. 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

18 

 

Federal subsidy payments, on a semi-annual basis we have two debts that actually have these 

payments from the federal government.  So twice a year I have to file a report with the IRS to get 

our money back from them.  Because the bonds are actually paying out at a higher interest rate, 

and then the federal government gives us money back to make them lower them to an actual tax 

exempt rate.  So currently we have two debt issues that are like that, and I have to file semi-

annually, and our payment back is about $71,000 semi-annually, so $140,000 a year.  So that’s a 

big deal if I forget to file those. 

 

And also record of retention, we must retain the records for as long as the debt is outstanding plus 

another seven years.  And then there’s also continuous disclosure requirements that by September 

30
th
 annually and when there’s material events I must file with a central database letting them 

know our financial statement as well as any material events that have happened. 

 

So this policy I would recommend adoption.  We’re actually going out for a bond issue to 

refinance RecPlex I believe debt issue next meeting.  So I’d like to get this in place so that when 

we get the questionnaire for this upcoming bond offering I can check off that we do have a policy 

so that they will look more favorably on us if we do have an audit. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

I’ll make a motion to approve. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Clyde, second by Monica.  Any further discussion? 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Kathy, you mean to say we’re not making big bucks off our borrowings? 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

No, we’re not. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

No further?   

 

 ALLEN MOVED TO APPROVE THE ADOPTION OF A POST-ISSUANCE TAX 

COMPLIANCE POLICY FOR TAX-EXEMPT AND TAX ADVANTAGED OBLIGATIONS; 

SECONDED BY YUHAS; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

19 

 

 E. Consider Ordinance #13-02 -- Ordinance to Create Chapter 170 of the 

Municipal Code pertaining to Escorts and Escort Services. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, we have Kevin Long from Quarles & Brady and Chief Mogensen to talk about this 

ordinance.  If you think back last fall we went through a work session with Attorney Long and 

Dave to address the problem that’s been growing and ways we can take care of it.  This ordinance 

that we have tonight is virtually the same with a few tweaks that we talked about the other night.  

I don’t know if you guys have anything to add or talk about it or if you have any questions on it 

since we met last.  The ordinance I think we probably should have got it out a little bit sooner, but 

I think this is a good time to get it going. 

 

Kevin Long: 

 

Mike, I think the Chief has a few remarks with respect to the policies behind the ordinance. 

 

Chief Mogensen: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, the biggest reason for creating this ordinance is to not 

only control the business itself, but it’s also to make sure the people working for these businesses 

meet requirements, that they have clear background checks, that there’s no criminal violations 

related to the type of business that they’re performing.  The reason for that is in escort services in 

general there are a number of secondary problems associated with it.  Other crimes such as 

prostitution, pornography, even more serious crimes of robbery, assault, theft, you name it, 

there’s usually some other element that’s involved with this type of service.  Just the nature of the 

business I suppose.  

 

What is happening is because of the internet we’re getting a lot of people posting their own 

personal advertising to provide these services, and it’s not regulated.  There’s no way to keep 

track of or monitor what is occurring.  And as a result you end up with some of the illegal activity 

that’s taking place. 

 

And so the way that the ordinance is structured it has very severe penalties, and it’s because we 

want to do whatever we can to make sure that the people in the Village are safe and that any 

legitimate business is protected and is performing a legal service.  And that the residents and the 

people involved with the service do not face any illegal activity or are not subject to it or at risk of 

it. 

 

Kevin Long: 

 

Mr. President and Trustees, the only other point that I would make and then we can take any 

questions, we do have a PowerPoint which is essentially the same as the PowerPoint that we went 

through in the working session, but it’s important to recognize the purpose of the statute and the 

ordinance in the ordinance itself which is the purpose and intent of the Village that the licensing 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

20 

of escorts and escort services be regulated so as to further protect the public interest, safety and 

welfare by providing minimum qualifications and to regulate, prevent and combat, control and 

mitigate the harmful secondary effects of escorts and escort services operated within the Village 

in a manner that is fully consistent with the First Amendment of the United States Constitution.  

And this ordinance consistence with the directives of what came out of our working meeting is to 

balance those to balance the constitutional rights of all citizens as well as the rights of all Pleasant 

Prairie citizens with respect to mitigating those harmful effects.  The second effects are very 

similar to the secondary effects that we discussed when the adult use ordinance was enacted by 

the Village several years ago.  And those findings and those secondary effects are essentially 

incorporated into the testimony of the Chief today. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Is there a PowerPoint we’re going to see or we’ve already seen it? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

We went over it in the working session. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

When this came up I did go online, Dave, and it’s big.  I was surprised how big it is and how 

open.  So I agree.  What are the penalties?  What did we come with the penalties on this, Kevin, 

and what did we decide on? 

 

Chief Mogensen: 

 

The first violation would be a $2,000 plus costs. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

And that’s coming to Pleasant Prairie’s -- 

 

Chief Mogensen: 

 

Pleasant Prairie Municipal Court.  So the first violation would be $2,000, second $3,000 and third 

and subsequent would be $5,000 plus costs. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

And realistically how many do you think we’ll license? 

 

Chief Mogensen: 

 

Probably not many.  Actually there’s a Grand Chute Police Department, or the municipality of 

Grand Chute, similar in size to the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  Almost identical population.  They 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

21 

enacted an ordinance very similar to this, probably almost exact, because they realized that they 

had a lot of activity that was popping up on the internet.  And they’re close to a main highway 

similar to us, I-94, they’re on Highway 41.  A lot of motels around the interstate.  The year that 

the enacted this they ended up making about 200 arrests for the crime of prostitution and 

soliciting the crimes.   

 

It’s just a small community, but they recognized that they had a problem, and they have similar 

penalties.  I think theirs is $2,600 or $2,500 for the first violation.  And they attacked it 

aggressively as would we, and there was a need and they did have an impact.  So it’s out there, 

and I think by enacting this ordinance I think we will do a great service to the Village in 

protecting them.  I don’t know if we’ll have many people register for it, but I think you’ll see 

results from the ordinance. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I guess the good thing about this also is if there’s going to be a covert operation conducted by 

your department my only fear is that we give the officer that’s involved enough protection in case 

something does go wrong.  I hope that doesn’t happen.  In stuff like this a very good possibility.  I 

think we have now the tools I think to make an impact.  I think a few incidents of special 

assignment will do a lot of good as far as possibly curbing some of this activity. 

 

Chief Mogensen: 

 

I agree. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I’m totally in favor of this.  And if you’re looking for approval -- are we ready for this now at this 

first reading? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Yes. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I would move approval of Ordinance 13-02. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Clyde for adoption or Ordinance 13-02.  Any further discussion?   

 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

22 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE #13-02 -- ORDINANCE TO CREATE 

CHAPTER 170 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO ESCORTS AND ESCORT 

SERVICES; SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

 F. Consider Ordinance #13-03 -- Ordinance to Amend Chapter 1-4 of the 

Municipal Code relating to Violations and Penalties. 
 

Chief Mogensen: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, this will act in conjunction with the ordinance you just 

passed.  What this does is it raises the fine for violations of prostitution and solicitation of 

prostitution, those violations issued through municipal court.  Right now the maximum penalty 

for either of those is $500 plus costs.  This ordinance would increase that amount to the same 

penalties as for the previous ordinance which is $2,000 for the first violation, $3,000 for second 

and $5,000 for the third and each additional.  It would work in conjunction with the previous 

ordinances passed. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

One question.  Kevin, maybe you could answer this.  What happens if the arrested party doesn’t 

pay? 

 

Kevin Long: 

 

If the arrested party doesn’t pay it would be similar to not paying any other ordinance violations. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

But that may not include jail time, is that right? 

 

Kevin Long: 

 

I don’t know the answer to that question.  I believe it would not as an ordinance violation as a 

matter of court provide for jail time. 

 

Chief Mogensen: 

 

Fines would typically be sent to collections for a tax intercept but no jail time. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

The laws have changed in the last few years as far as what we can impose for nonpayment.  I 

don’t think incarceration is one of them that we have an alternative on.  That’s just a concern that 

I have with this.  We’ll see where it goes. 

 

Kevin Long: 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

23 

 

Right, that’s not something we control.  But in general the implementation of these type 

ordinance has had the effect of taking the activity out of municipalities and minimizing the 

secondary effect. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I move approval of 13-03. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Monica for adoption of Ordinance 13-03.  Any further discussion?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE #13-03 -- ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 1-4 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES; 

SECONDED BY YUHAS; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

 G. Consider Ordinance #13-04 -- Ordinance to Amend Chapter 214 of the 

Municipal Code relating to Licenses and Permits. 
 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Mr. President and Board members, this ordinance actually incorporates amendments and some 

cleanup that was discovered as we were trying to add these additions in.  So 214-1, license fees 

enumerated, number F was added just because of the adoption of Chapter 170 with escort service 

and escorts.  We’ll skip to the same section, Item P.  If you recall back in October of 2011 we had 

the second hand article dealer and jewelry license update as a chapter, and all of that is in the 

municipal code.  Those fees were not included in the licensing and permit chapter which just 

basically is cleanup and now they are.   

 

And then we go to general licensing requirements 214-2, and that enumerates the licenses that the 

Village Clerk can issue without Board approval.  The ones that aren’t bolded have been in there, 

but we did add (4) would be the escort and escort service licenses.  And note that that would be 

upon approval of the community development department and the Chief of Police.  We have a 

process when a license application would come in, how it proceeds through the staff.  And then 

we added number (7), and this has happened because we’ve had these licenses already.  I can 

issue a license with the approval of both the Community Development Department and the Chief 

of Police.  So a little bit of cleanup, some addition.   

 

Going back when I’m looking at G and H the cleanup on that was we noticed all the licenses 

listed here expired June 30
th
 which they don’t.  This is an old ordinance that needed to be 

updated.  So I’ve added obviously the December 31
s 
date and I’ve noted going back to sub M, sub 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

24 

O that I’ve added the word calendar, and that takes care of all licenses whether they’re issued 

through June 30
th
 or December 31

st
 or for a shorter term such as a peddler’s license which is a 

three month license.  And then it corresponds to that, originally it was May 15
th
 you would have 

to submit a renewal.  Again, when you have a calendar year license that’s not the case.  So that 

was just changed to say at least 30 days prior to the expiration date of the license term.  So some 

cleanup, some additions, and I would recommend this ordinance is approved. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

I’ll make a motion to approve Ordinance 13-04. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Monica, second by Clyde for adoption of Ordinance 13-04.  Any further discussion?   

 

 YUHAS MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE #13-04 -- ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 214 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO LICENSES AND PERMITS; 

SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

 H. Consider Operator License Applications on file. 
 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

We have three of them tonight, Nicole Kloet, Ashley Sentieri and Joseph Sturino.  All 

applications had no records and I would recommend approval. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Move approval. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Clyde.  Any further discussion?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE OPERATOR LICENSES TO NICOLE KLOET, 

ASHLEY SENTIERI AND JOSEPH STURINO AS PRESENTED; SECONDED BY ALLEN; 

MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

 

25 

9. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS – None. 

 

10. CONSIDER ENTERING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO SECTION 

19.95(1)(G) WIS. STATS. TO CONFER WITH LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE 

GOVERNMENTAL BODY WHO IS RENDERING ORAL OR WRITTEN ADVICE 

CONCERNING STRATEGY TO BE ADOPTED BY THE BODY WITH RESPECT TO 

LITIGATION IN WHICH IT IS OR IS LIKELY TO BECOME INVOLVED. 
 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We’ll need a roll call vote. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Move to go into executive session. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Monica.  

 

 SERPE MOVED TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION AS NOTICED; SECONDED 

BY YUHAS; ROLL CALL VOTE – STEINBRINK – AYE; ALLEN – AYE; SERPE – AYE; 

YUHAS – AYE; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Board will return to open session for the purpose of adjournment only.  No other business will be 

conducted. 

 

11. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT. 

 

 After discussion concluded in closed session, SERPE MOVED TO RETURN TO OPEN 

SESSION AND ADJDOURN THE MEETING;  SECONDED BY YUHAS; ROLL CALL VOTE – 

STEINBRINK – AYE; ALLEN – AYE; SERPE – AYE; YUHAS – AYE; MOTION CARRIED 4-0 

AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:50 P.M. 

 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

9915 - 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI   

January 21, 2013 

6:00 p.m. 
 

 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, January 21, 2013.  

Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Monica 

Yuhas, Steve Kumorkiewicz, Clyde Allen and Mike Serpe.  Also present were Michael Pollocoff, Village 

Administrator; Tom Shircel, Assistant Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development 

Director; Kathy Goessl, Finance Director; Dave Mogensen, Interim Police Chief; Doug McElmury, Fire 

& Rescue Chief; Rocco Vita, Village Assessor; Mike Spence, Village Engineer; John Steinbrink Jr., 

Public Works Director; Carol Willke, Human Resources Director; and Jane M. Romanowski, Village 

Clerk.  Two citizens attended the meeting. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. ROLL CALL 

 

4. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

We have one signup today, Rick Hershberger. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you, Rick.  If you’ll give us your name and address for the record. 

 

Rick Hershberger: 

 

Rick Hershberger, I’m the director of distribution for Meijer, 2929 Walker Avenue NW, Grand 

Rapids, Michigan, 49544.  I came tonight to be available in regards to any questions for agenda 

Item B. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you.  Anyone else wishing to speak under citizens’ comments?  Hearing none, I’m going 

to close citizens’ comments. 

 

5. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT – None. 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

2 

6. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Consider Resolution #13-03 - Resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of 

$6,975,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013. 
 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

Yes.  The resolution actually has changed to $7,305,000 because the resolution you had was 

before the sale actually happened or the pricing was happening, and this is actually priced last 

Thursday.  So the final pricing gives us a bond amount of $7,305,000.  So this bond is to 

refinance a RecPlex balloon payment which we’re going to be calling on May 1, 2013.  The 

payment was actually maturity of May 1, 2014, the amount of $7,850,000.  The note we’re 

calling had a 5 percent interest rate and was issued back on May 3, 2004.   

 

The pricing on this new bond actually comes in with an effective interest rate of 2.06 percent.  It’s 

actually being issued at a premium of $665,931.  The coupons range from 3 to 3.25.  We were 

rated by Standard and Poors, and they maintained our rating at AA with a stable outlook.  So if 

you have any questions on this refinancing, otherwise I need a roll call vote. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Any questions? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I was just curious what’s the amount of savings that we’re realizing on that because of the 

refinancing?  I’m not complaining. 

 

Gene Schulz: 

 

Actually it’s a restructuring because what we did with the original issue we did it on a 20 year 

amortization with a 10 year balloon.  Now we’re taking the balloon out over the remaining life of 

20 years.  So you can’t really come up with a true savings because we’re taking one maturity of 

2014 and spread it out over another 10 years.  But had we gone back from the original issue of 

2004 and issued it on a 20 year basis at that time we’ve saved between $500,000 and $600,000 by 

doing it this way.  So that’s the best way of looking at it at this point. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Sounds good.  I move approval. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

3 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve.  Any discussion?  Hearing none, roll call vote has been 

requested. 

 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #13-03 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 

THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF $6,975,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 

SERIES 2013; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; ROLL CALL VOTE – SERPE – AYE; 

KUMORKIEWICZ – AYE; YUHAS – AYE; STEINBRINK – AYE; ALLEN – AYE; MOTION 

CARRIED 5-0. 

 

B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #13-05 to adopt 

the STH 50 Access Management Vision as a component of the Village's 

Comprehensive Plan and to create Section 390-6 G of the Village Municipal Code to 

specifically list this Plan as a component of the Village's Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, the purpose of this Ordinance 13-05 is to adopt the 

State Highway 50 Access Management Vision as a component of the Village’s Comprehensive 

Plan.  And this is to create 390-6 G of the Village Municipal Code.  Specifically, Highway 50 

Access Management Vision extends from I-94 to 43
rd

 Avenue in the Village.  The plan is 

identified as an access management vision because it’s really an extension and expansion of the 

Transportation Access Management Plan that was completed by the then Town of Pleasant 

Prairie, City of Kenosha, County of Kenosha as well as Wisconsin DOT back in 1987. 

 

The purpose for this update was the fact that we were experiencing a lot of economic changes and 

growth in the area as well as there was starting to get a great deal of traffic demands on Highway 

50.  So we needed to look at making sure there was continued access restrictions and other 

modifications to medians and such in order to protect the integrity of the highway. 

 

As you know, in 2012 there was a large DOT project to do a resurfacing of Highway 50 and to 

remove some medians and some driveways, but really this is the long-term vision plan to help as 

land uses advance in our community.  And Highway 50, as you know, is not proposed to be 

widened to a six lane profile until at least 2022.  So it will be some time before that actually 

happens. 

 

So this is really an update of a plan that was brought to the State and to the Village.  About a year 

ago it was completed.  The situation is that we are now getting to the point where we’re adopting 

this plan.  We’ve made a number of minor revisions and other major revisions in working with 

the DOT on this plan.  Specifically it does offer for some options for managing new access, 

identifies where new proposed signalized intersections would go, where medians would be 

restricted through channelized left and right turn lanes.  It offers a lot of detailed information to 

the local communities, again, when new plans are being advanced to the DOT and new 

development is occurring. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

4 

The Village staff went through.  The staff went through each of these four segments on Highway 

50.  As you move from approximately 118
th
 Avenue east all the way to 43

rd
 Avenue this is the 

first segment of the plan.  And this plan specifically does identify the channelized left turn lane 

movements, the restricted access, the removed driveway points.  It identifies in blue A and B 

where the local access roads are going to be constructed.  As you know the local access road in 

Pleasant Prairie identified as B is 109
th
 Avenue and 77

th
 Street to the east.  And then to the west 

an extension of about Eau Plaines Parkway which will lead into the future Chateau Eau Plaines 

area when and if that does develop. 

 

And then moving further to the east the next segment, again, between 104
th
 Avenue on the left 

and then just past the tracks on the right, the south side, again, we’re focusing in on Pleasant 

Prairie.  It just identifies a lot of the same things that we have already implemented in Pleasant 

Prairie.  This is our Prairie Ridge development and then going east of 88
th
 Avenue.  This is the 

third segment from the railroad tracks.  It takes us all the way to Highway 31 and beyond almost 

to 60
th
 Avenue.  Again, there’s a lot more restricted access.  There’s identified for local access 

roads, closed medians, closed driveways.  Again, this is intended to be a guide to direct new 

development when and if it does happen in our combined communities. 

 

One of the elements I just want to talk about just briefly, we talked about it at length at the Plan 

Commission meeting, is the jug handle area at Highway 31 and Highway 50.  This plan actually 

advances and identifies a jug handle approach which actually just pulls that development away 

from the intersection of 50 and 31 for the right hand turn movements.  There’s some discussion 

that’s going on as to whether or not that plan is going to be advanced or not, but the plan does 

show the jug handle there talking about some other options at this point as basically having four 

through lanes in each direction and double and triple turn lanes and things like that.  The way we 

wrote this is that Pleasant Prairie is open to further discussion, but I think generally we have 

supported this jug handle over the last several years.  But we are open to listen to the discussion 

and any traffic studies that may present something different to us. 

 

And then the final segment is that area between 60
th
 Avenue and 43

rd
 Avenue.  Again, the biggest 

impact I think really is in the City of Kenosha with respect to a number of closures of driveways, 

a number of the ones in Pleasant Prairie, at least three of these have already been closed in 

Pleasant Prairie, the median closures.  Again, the key is not to have direct driveway access out 

onto Highway 50 but really to encourage cross-access and shared driveways and getting that 

traffic movement to area or adjacent public streets, and then bringing that public street traffic 

north to Highway 50. 

 

Again, we’ve been working on this for a very, very long time.  And the staff and the Plan 

Commission is recommending approval of the Wisconsin Highway 50 Access Management 

Vision I-94 to 43
rd

 Avenue.  It was dated January 2012, and I’m not sure if we’re the first 

community to adopt it, but the State is very anxious to get us moving and all the communities 

moving toward adoption of this plan. 

 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

5 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

As Jean indicated there’s been some additional discussion related to the intersection of Highway 

50 and 31 and whether or not the jug handle alternative is viable.  The jug handle alternative was 

an outgrowth of several other proposals, overheads, underpasses, other schemes to handle that 

traffic.  And it was determined by a process where really nobody was happy that the jug handle 

seemed to accommodate the most amount of traffic.  That would be the option. 

 

In the intervening time there was some changes to state law that altered what would be permitted 

on Highway 31 for the weight and the length of trucks that would be going down Highway 31, 

primarily from the SC Johnson facilities down to LakeView where they’re going to have a 

warehouse facility.  And that kind of juggles some of the process numbers that I think even SC 

Johnson didn’t anticipate  It’s their other arm of their operation is the bank look at how that 

affects it. 

 

And we’re kind of coming down to conclusion to get a lot of these issues resolved, and then this 

issue bubbled up.  We might end up going back to jug handles, but I mean I think there’s some 

additional data that needs to be evaluated as it relates to traffic counts, as it relates to coming up 

with some other alternatives and just what the impacts are as far as abandoning driveways, 

acquiring additional right of way and relocating businesses before that’s done. 

 

The ordinance that’s before us tonight has language that says that we’re adopting this, we’re 

making this an ordinance, everybody is going to follow this ordinance provided further discussion 

related to the intersection is required.  I don’t think we can really hang our hat on the Village’s 

capacity or ability to enforce something within the Village on whether or not discussion occurred 

and what the results of that discussion were.   

 

So I’m recommending some amended language to G where after January 12
th
 providing for 

additional evaluation and approval of alternative engineering designs for the intersection of 

Highway 50 and 31.  I think we really need to state specifically that we’re going to approve this 

plan, but the DOT and the parties involved haven’t concluded the intersection plan.  And for us to 

include in the ordinance there has to be some design alternatives that they’ve gone through, vetted 

through the communities as well as ourselves, and then adjust that.  So I don’t want to toss the 

whole ordinance out, but I think if we just say further discussion.  I don’t know what that means.  

If we really try to get somebody to do something and somebody wants to have an access point 

and we’re denying or we’re not recommending it, I don’t think we’ve got a lot to hang our hats 

on.  I’d just much rather say is we have to recognize there’s more work that’s going to be done on 

it.  I don’t now what the end result is going to be, but they should vet that process out with some 

of the things that have changed since they did the jug handle analysis. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Jean, we call this the vision or the DOT is calling it a vision.  It’s the same vision the Village has 

always followed especially when you look at Prairie Ridge how we’ve laid this out.  And we’ve 

done this as long as I can remember as being proactive on this and working with the State to get 

this done.  It seems like we’re doing a lot of catch up here, and has the City adopted this? 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

6 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Not to my knowledge. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Because they’ve got the biggest nut to crack over here with what they haven’t done over the 

years. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

You can just tell by looking at the number of changes that Jean identified that we have to do 

versus the north side of the highway. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

And the jug handles are basically a last resort.  And they’re a last resort because they didn’t plan 

when they developed that intersection there with what they put on the corners.  Now, everybody 

knew that was going to grow and become something in the future, but it’s become a very costly 

venture now because we have to make those corrections.  Businesses are concerned on the 

corners what’s going to happen and that, but I have to agree with Mike.  We sat through those 

hearings or meetings, and I sat through even more of them where people were concerned about 

how this intersection is going to be handled to handle the traffic in the future.   

 

And unfortunately the wisdom of the State didn’t prevail or the wisdom of the Village didn’t 

prevail in the City because we had asked that this construction be moved ahead on 50 and said 

that repaving project went ahead and we postponed the major reconstruction.  That’s probably 

something that’s going to come back to haunt this area after we become over crowded and that.  I 

just have to agree with Mike on making those changes because having sat through those meetings 

and different groups who were involved in looking at this intersection and what’s going to 

happen. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I agree with you, John, and Mike also.  I’m still troubled by the fact that when the State came 

forward and said that they were going to repave Highway 50 out to the I, and we questioned that 

because of the amount of money it’s going to take and they’re going to reconstruct in 2017.  And 

now it’s pushed out to 2022.  And I’m here to tell you that road is going to impassable by 2022.  

It’s going to be impassable by 2018, by 2017.  Mike, I’m going to support your amendment, and I 

agree with everything John said. 

 

I want to further say I think we should get hold of the City, and together I think we should ask 

that the 2017 date be put back on the agenda here to get that road widened to where it needs to be 

to handle the traffic that we’re creating.  We’re not getting smaller.  Meijer is coming in now.  

They’re going to create traffic out there.  Our commercial development on Highway 50 at Prairie 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

7 

Ridge is going to create more traffic.  We have subdivisions now going in.  We have apartments 

going in.  We’re just building, and Kenosha is doing the same thing on the north side.  We can’t 

afford to leave that road the way it is for nine more years.  It’s suicide.  I’m not going to get too 

political here.  I will support and move approval of 13-05 with the amendment that Mike 

mentioned. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Clyde.  Any further discussion?  If not I have a call here for a roll call 

vote, is that correct? 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Yes. 

 

 SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 

RECOMMENDATION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE #13-05 TO INCLUDE THE STH 50 ACCESS 

MANAGEMENT VISION AS A COMPONENT OF THE VILLAGE'S COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AND TO CREATE SECTION 390-6 G OF THE VILLAGE MUNICIPAL CODE TO 

SPECIFICALLY LIST THIS PLAN AS A COMPONENT OF THE VILLAGE'S 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN SUBJECT TO THE RECOMMENDED CHANGES OF THE 

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR; SECONDED BY ALLEN;  ROLL CALL VOTE – YUHAS – 

AYE; KUMORKIEWICZ – AYE;  ALLEN – AYE; SERPE – AYE; STEINBRINK – AYE; 

MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #13-06 to 

amend Section 420-76 DD of the Village Zoning Ordinance related to wall sign 

requirements. 
 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, this is Ordinance #13-06, and this is an ordinance to 

amend the Village’s zoning ordinance as it relates to sign requirements.  A public hearing was 

held before the Plan Commission, and there were no objections to the modifications.  

Specifically, these are modifications to Section 420-76 DD as it relates to wall signs. 

 

Over the past couple of years we’ve gone through a series of reviews with new commercial 

tenants in the Village, and they’ve kind of been pushing things to the limit with respect to some 

of the provisions in the sign ordinance, some of the things of which we thought might be more 

common sense and really seem to be the right things to do.  But because I didn’t have it in an 

ordinance it became very difficult to implement.  So some of the items that are identified in red 

on the screen, there’s two separate sheets that identify these bolded items. 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

8 

 

The biggest things have to do where the sign is placed on the building and that it doesn’t overlap 

architectural features that the signage isn’t too big for the space that’s been identified for the wall 

sign.  There are provisions that talk about the size and the depth of the wall sign that can be 

placed on the building.  There’s specific language now that says that the wall sign cannot extend 

beyond the leasable storefront space of the tenant of where you’re looking to place that sign.  

That we have only channel type or pin mounted letters.  One of the things that we aren’t going to 

be allowing anymore are these box or cabinet signs.  Typically they have not been approved in 

any of our PUDs, but we just want to make it very clear.  No sign raceways are allowed or visible 

crossovers.  And we do allow some provisions throughout that if, in fact, a sign is presented that 

we just didn’t envision that it could look a certain way or be designed a certain way, there is some 

flexibility that’s been written into these provisions given to the zoning administrator to evaluate 

some of these signs on a case-by-case basis. 

 

So the Village staff and the Plan Commission recommend approval of these modifications that 

have been shown that you’ve seen, again, to Section 420-76 DD.  So we recommend approval of 

Ordinance #13-06. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

So moved. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Steve, second by Clyde.  Any further discussion on this item? 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Jean, one quick question.  If there’s a signage that’s currently not conforming to this new 

ordinance, if they go to replace a sign or if something needs to be replaced would they have to 

conform to the current ordinance?  Or, are they grandfathered in? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

It depends.  If the value of that sign exceeds -- they can make certain improvements to a 

particular sign because it would be considered a nonconforming sign.  But once they exceed that 

excess value of that original sign then they would need to conform to the current regulations.  So 

far the various entities that had presented some challenges to us they eventually complied with 

what these rules and regulations were because of the adjacent sign PUDs that were adjacent to 

these properties.  So I think that this is very typical of what you have seen in Pleasant Prairie.   

 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

9 

We just have a couple more stand alone businesses that aren’t in a PUD that were raising a 

number of questions.  And they said, well, you know, if we would have known about these ahead 

of time.  So now they know what they are, and now they’re nonconforming, so each time they 

come in to change that sign we document the value of the sign of what it was when it became 

nonconforming, and then they can do these improvements but they can’t exceed that value of that 

sign over that period of time into the future.  Otherwise they’ll have to bring it up to code into this 

current regulation. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?   

 

 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 

RECOMMENDATION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE #13-06 TO AMEND SECTION 420-76 DD 

OF THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE RELATED TO WALL SIGN REQUIREMENTS; 

SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

D. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider the request of CenterPoint 

WisPark Land Company LLC for approval of a Certified Survey Map for vacant 

property north of 109th Street between 80th and 88th Avenues. 
 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Plan Commission, this is a request for a certified survey map, 

and this is for the property that’s generally located south of 107
th
 Street north of 109

th
 Street 

between 80
th
 and 88

th
 Avenues in the LakeView Corporate Park.  It’s the construction of the 

471,403 square foot distribution building to be referred to as Ta Chen International, Inc.  Initially 

it was identified as LakeView 14, but they have since announced that they are going to be the 

tenant at that particular location and will be taking over 100 percent of that building. 

 

They are a distributor of stainless steel products.  In fact, Ta Chen is the world industry leader in 

inventory, breadth, depth and availability for over 25,000 stainless steel, aluminum and nickel 

type products.  They have eight locations nationwide offering same day and next day services.  Ta 

Chen provides access to one of the most complete inventories of pipe, tub, sheet, plate, bar, 

fittings, valves in the metal industry. 

 

This is a matter that was before our Village Plan Commission on January 14
th
, and the Plan 

Commission conditionally approved their preliminary site and operational plans so that they 

could begin their mass grading and footing and foundation work.  The company has since decided 

not to piecemeal this.  They actually already submitted their final site and operational plans to the 

State, and they’re working on submitting everything to the Village.  So they intend to move very 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

10 

quickly forward and break ground in the spring with this facility.  They’re not going to do it in 

steps or phases. 

 

Specifically they have a certified survey map that has been requested.  Because, as you know, 

with certified survey maps we use them to combine parcels, to identify easements and to have one 

single legal description identifiable, easy to read legal description for a particular property.  And 

so their certified survey map has been submitted and is recommended for approval by the Plan 

Commission as well as the staff. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

John, I have one question.  Jean, I missed it at the Plan Commission if it was mentioned.  Is the 

entire operation moving into Pleasant Prairie from Illinois? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

My understanding is that it is. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Office and everybody? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Yes. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Good.  Move approval. 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

With expansion. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We have a motion by Mike, second by Steve.  Any further discussion?   

 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

11 

 SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 

RECOMMENDATION AND APPROVE A CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR VACANT 

PROPERTY NORTH OF 109TH STREET BETWEEN 80TH AND 88TH AVENUES; 

SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

E. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider the request of Meijer 

Distribution, Inc. for approval of a Certified Survey Map for the property located at 

7400 95th Street. 
 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, the petitioner has recently acquired property previously 

occupied by SuperValu located at 7400 95
th
 Street, and the use of the site and the facility would 

be for another wholesale grocery distribution center.  This one would be for Meijer Distribution, 

Inc. from Grand Rapids, Michigan.  They intend to construct a 253,677 square foot distribution 

center addition onto the existing facility.  This addition would accommodate a high bay 

automated storage and retrieval system or an ASRS building, welfare areas and associated docks. 

 

As you know, the existing facility has one story office space of over 54,000, dry grocery 

warehouse at over 360,000 square feet, refrigerated warehouse at over 137,000 square feet, a 

tractor trailer maintenance and service building, a guard house, an energy center and a fueling 

station.  So they are completely outfitted for this type of use.  This fits them very well.  Again, the 

addition they are proposing would address their dry goods storage and retrieval system that they 

are proposing at this location.  The facility would operate 24 hours a day, seven days a week.  

Truck deliveries would be departing and entering throughout the day.  At the Plan Commission 

meeting we went through very specific information with respect to the employees, the number of 

trucks and the truck traffic as well as their schedule.   

 

Specifically, just as a reminder, the existing facility will be closed approximately May of 2013 

through mid 2014.  Operations are expected to then restart by the summer/fall of 2014.  Again, at 

peak time full-time employees are estimated at 486 including third party labor, and part-time 

employees are estimated at 42 with third party labor as well. 

 

Site access for this development is similar to what it was before.  Everything with respect to 

trucks are coming in off of Green Bay Road at their main truck entrance where the guard station 

is.  They are constructing some additional parking lots at that northern end including a bullpen 

area which is like a waiting area for scheduled times for trucks to make their deliveries.  The 

office area will have their access still from 95
th
 Street midway between Highway 31 and the 

railroad tracks headed north into their parking lot, so it would continue to separate the office 

traffic with the truck traffic on this site. 

 

What I explained already is the current or the proposed addition to the facility.  Their ultimate 

master plan does show two more expansions to this particular facility at this location.  Again, we 

do have a representative here from Meijer if you have any additional question.  At the last Plan 

Commission on January 14
th
 Meijer did receive preliminary site and operational plan approval.  

And, again, that would allow them to start any mass grading on the site and to start to submit for 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

12 

footing and foundation.  We are working very closely with their contractors, Gray Construction, 

in order to continue to move them through that process so that they can submit their final site and 

operational plans later this spring so that they can start and get some timely work later this spring 

or early this summer for their addition work. 

 

The certified survey map that’s specifically before the Board, again, combines three properties 

because there’s three different tax parcels, and it does also identify some additional easements 

and some other items on the certified survey map.  We’ve made some corrections to that, and 

they are looking to make those modifications and get that back to us as well. 

 

At the Plan Commission meeting we also did discuss briefly that the Village is working on an 

area wide traffic study that includes the Meijer property as well as Ta Chen and other large 

distribution facilities that have been recently announced in the Village.  And so I don’t know if 

Mike wants to get into some of that discussion, but we do intend to work with Meijer as well.  

They’re just completing their traffic study for their grocery operations just north on 31 in the City 

of Kenosha.  And we’ve just started some discussions with them regarding completing a traffic 

study for that intersection that they have.  It’s unsignalized but it’s a full median opening at their 

main entrance as well.  The staff and the Plan Commission recommend approval of the CSM. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

So move to approve. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Steve, second by Monica.  Mike? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

As Jean indicated we are going to be working to see that some TEA money, which is federal pass 

through money to the State to make some improvements.  I’m not sure that those are going to be 

needed in the first instance.  But the way the TEA grant works you need to get that application in 

before decisions are made to start construction on it.  So it might be a secondary phase.  I know 

there was some concern by some residents whether or not this was going to cause a burden.   

 

Really, the long-range plans for that SuperValu facility when they were approved anticipated a 

fairly high number of trucks.  And Highway 31 was designed and built with being able to 

accommodate all that traffic.  So that traffic won’t affect anybody on old Green Bay Road or 

anyplace else.  But I do think in taking a good long-range look at a transportation plan in that area 

we need to make sure they can get in and out of their sites so there’s not a problem and get in and 

out safely, plus be able to make sure that over the long haul we can have good traffic moving 

down to 165 and 165 out to the Interstate rather than relying on Highway 50.  If you think back to 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

13 

the little conundrum we were talking about with Highway 50, I’d hate to see their trucks or 

anybody’s trucks tied up in trying to get through the 50 and 31 intersection and getting out all the 

way up to the Interstate on 50. 

 

One other item, I’m just making myself crazy, back to the other item on 50 and 31, I don’t want 

anybody to think that Jean put in an inaccurate statement on that ordinance.  I was part of writing 

that one, too.  Just as it came up it was fairly current.  So that was the place holder to get it 

changed, so I don’t want anybody to think she did something wrong [inaudible].  But I do think 

that Meijer stores, and we’re not really privy to that stuff and that’s pretty premature, that traffic 

study is really going to drive how we reconfigure that intersection as well.  All the more 

important we need to try and get that grant to get Meijer Distribution to be able to get out easily 

and go south. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Right, because their work over there they have to continue over to 60
th
 Avenue.  So there’s going 

to be some changes made to the plan we were all looking at for that intersection. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

There’s been a whole lot of talk about Meijer’s announcement coming into Pleasant Prairie and 

into the city.  And I have not heard one negative thing about it.  Matter of fact nothing but 

positive.  And I think people are excited about what they’re seeing, and we certainly welcome 

you to the community. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

With that being said we have a motion and a second.  Are there any questions for the 

representatives?   

 

 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 

RECOMMENDATION AND APPROVE A CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR THE PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 7400 95TH STREET; SECONDED BY YUHAS; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you, gentlemen, for coming this evening and being here, and welcome to Pleasant Prairie. 

 

F. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Land Transfer Ordinance 

#2 for the request of Louis Rosen, owner, to transfer approximately 9 acres of land 

generally located south of 104th Street and west of 120th Avenue (West Frontage 

Road) into Pleasant Prairie from the Village of Bristol (f/k/a Town of Bristol). 
 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

14 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, this is Land Transfer Ordinance #2 at the request of 

Louis Rosen.  He’s the owner of some land that’s generally located south of 104
th
 Street and west 

of 120
th
 Avenue.  In accordance with the 1997 Settlement and Cooperation Agreement by and 

between the Village of Pleasant Prairie and the Village of Pleasant Prairie Utility Districts, the 

Town and now Village of Bristol and all their utility districts, this is an amendment, including the 

first amendment.  

 

There are two options to transfer land into Pleasant Prairie from the Village of Bristol or now 

Village of Bristol.  Option one is a direct annexation, but option 2 is a procedure for the transfer 

of land to the Village as outlined in our agreement, and that is the procedure that has been 

implemented at this point.  And, again, this matter was also before the Village Plan Commission 

and is before the Village Board for its final decision. 

 

On November 16, 2012, the Village received land transfer petitions from Louis Rosen, owner of 

approximately 9 acres of land generally located south of 104
th
 Street, west of 120

th
 Avenue.  The 

property owners requested that a land transfer be approved to transfer said lands into the Village 

of Pleasant Prairie from Bristol pursuant to the 1997 agreement and first amendment to the 

agreement.  These parcels are identified as Tax Parcel Numbers 37-4-121-254-0400 and 37-4-

121-254-0405.  They’re located within the Village’s growth area, and they complete the 

outermost limits of the Village’s growth area along our southern boundary. 

 

On November 21
st
 the Village Clerk sent to all affected government entities a copy of Rosen’s 

petition.  The Board is considering this transfer tonight which is after the 35 day waiting period.  

According to the Village of Bristol both properties to be annexed into the Village are zoned A-2, 

General Agricultural District, and a portion of the properties are zoned FPO, Floodplain Overlay 

District.  The properties will remain in these zoning districts at this time.   

 

At a future date the Village will hold the required public hearing to amend the Village’s 

Comprehensive Plan and to rezone the properties into the appropriate Village designations.  

These properties are not located within Tax Increment District #2, but the land to the north is 

located within the TID.  The Plan Commission and the staff recommend approval of this Land 

Transfer Ordinance #2 as presented. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Motion to approve the Land Transfer Ordinance #2. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Monica, second by Steve.  Any further discussion?   



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

15 

 

 YUHAS MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 

RECOMMENDATION AND ADOPT LAND TRANSFER ORDINANCE #2  TO TRANSFER 

APPROXIMATELY 9 ACRES OF LAND GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF 104TH 

STREET AND WEST OF 120TH AVENUE (WEST FRONTAGE ROAD) INTO PLEASANT 

PRAIRIE FROM THE VILLAGE OF BRISTOL (F/K/A TOWN OF BRISTOL); SECONDED BY 

KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

G. Consider an Award of Contract to purchase Finance, Payroll, Human Resources 

and Utility Billing software. 
 

Tom Shircel: 

 

Thank you, Mr. President and Board members.  In order to improve the efficiency of the finance 

and human resource departments, the Village issued a RFP on April 3 of last year, 2012, for the 

purpose of acquiring a finance, payroll, human resources and utility billing software.   In response 

to that RFP, Tyler Technologies, Inc. submitted a proposal to the Village dated April 25, 2012.  

After evaluation of all software vendors, in November of last year the Village IT department, HR 

department and finance staff selected Tyler Technologies as the preferred software vendor for 

furnishing, delivering, installing and implementing that specified software. 

 

The Village Board approved through the 2013 operating capital budget process a total capital and 

operating budget of $356,270 across all major enterprise funds and general government budgets.  

The actual contract with Tyler that you’re considering tonight totals $328,695 which is 

approximately $27,000 under budget.  So the amount of capital allotted was $205,639 for 

software licenses, implementation and travel associated with that implementation.  Operating 

amount allotted was $150,631 for training, data conversion and travel expenses, again, associated 

with training and data conversion. 

 

In your packet tonight the agreement is in your packet which details a provision of the Tyler 

products and services and the Village’s payment for those services as set forth in that agreement.  

Implementation of that program will start next month with finance.  And the utility billing 

software will be implemented in 2014.  The Village attorney, human resources director, finance 

director and the Village IT staff has reviewed this agreement, and in their collective agreement is 

in order.  And as the interim IT director I recommend that the Village Board approve the Tyler 

agreement as submitted.  If you have any questions I’d be happy to answer them. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I have.  Where’s Tyler located, Tom? 

 

Tom Shircel: 

 

They’re in Maine. 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

16 

Michael Serpe: 

 

And how long have they been around? 

 

Tom Shircel: 

 

That I don’t know. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

It’s been a while. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

They’re well established? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

For a software company they’ve been around a while. 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

Over 20 years, and of all the people that we actually reviewed they had the most customers that 

were using their software.  They are large staffed that specializes in different areas of their 

software to help with after implementation as well to help with any problems or help we need 

with software. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Can we get a motion? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I move approval of the contract to Tyler. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

I’ll make a second with a question.  Kathy or Mike, on the Section 6 limitation of liability, is that 

standard?  That sounds pretty scary.  Is that normal in their technology world do we know? 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

I believe it is.  I know the attorney reviewed it as well and made some recommendation on some 

changes that he felt was a concern.  So there was a couple changes made from them but this is 

their standard technology agreement. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

17 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

The thrust of that is to ensure that from Tyler’s standpoint, especially as you relate it to the item 

above, any modifications, changes, adaptations that the Village and our IT shop would make in 

their source code or their program that they’re not going to assume any liability for it.  From the 

software products that I’ve looked at between City Works and CSI and the knuckleheads that did 

the website, the technical term for them, they work to dish off as much liability as they can.  

That’s where it’s at. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO PURCHASE FINANCE, PAYROLL, 

HUMAN RESOURCES AND UTILITY BILLING SOFTWARE FROM TYLER 

TECHNOLOGIES INC. IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $328,695; SECONDED BY 

ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

H. Consider a State/Municipal Agreement for the proposed Kenosha County/Pleasant 

Prairie Park and Ride lot located on Terwall Terrace in Prairie Springs Park. 
 

Mike Spence: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, Kenosha County has received a congestion mitigation 

and air quality otherwise known as CMAQ funding from the State of Wisconsin DOT to 

construct a park and ride lot in Kenosha County.  The plan for the park and ride lot is to 

accommodate approximately 200 vehicles.  Currently there are no park and ride facilities in 

Kenosha County, and this facility would promote car pooling opportunities and potentially the 

use of mass transit and thereby improve air quality.  That’s why the grant was given. 

 

Originally the location that was being investigated by the County was at I-94 and Highway 50.  

But that was determined to be unacceptable because of environmental and other constraints.  At 

this point the Village entered into discussions with Kenosha County and the DOT about the 

possibility of locating the park and ride in the Village at Terwall Terrace.  As you know, the 

Village does need especially on the weekends overflow parking facilities adjacent to the RecPlex.  

So we presented a plan to the DOT really to make it a win-win situation for a commuter parking 

lot as well as an overflow lot for the RecPlex.  The County and the DOT concurred that this was a 

good choice. 

 

We’ve also indicated that this site would be a good site for some potential economic 

development, and the concept would include potentially some retail establishments.  As you can 

see on the drawing there those two pink boxes represent some potential commercial development 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

18 

there.  The facility would be a prime location for RecPlex events throughout the year.  And 

further in the process it was determined that it makes sense for the Village to be a sponsor 

because we have additional plans for the area, and the parking lot would be actually a little bit 

bigger to accommodate RecPlex overflow parking. 

 

So we’ve agreed to be the sponsor.  So before you tonight you do have the agreement with the 

DOT and the Village to construct this facility and to accept the grant from the DOT.  And if this 

is approved tonight, then the next steps would be we would initiate the actual design of the park 

and ride and move forward with construction.  So I’m recommending that this contract or 

agreement with the DOT be signed.  And I’d be glad to answer any questions. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Mike, this is a good spot because we already know it’s a good spot because people are already 

using this spot. 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

That’s correct. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

And using our facility parking for easy access to the interstate and Highway 165. 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

That is correct. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

This is quite a logical step forward.  It’s just a shame it’s taking this long.  That unfortunately it 

State government at its finest I guess. 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

One thing in response to that, John, I guess I’m hopeful it is going to be a cooperative agreement 

with the DOT.  And there are some environmental issues that we’re going to have to address.  

And we’re hoping with the way the process is going to be set up that will hopefully be more 

streamlined and we can get it built sooner. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Right, because the need is already there, and it’s proven by the number of people using that 

facility to park and ride with others to their workplace. 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

19 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

I think the fact that it’s already being used, I think we counted from the aerial 125 cars in the 

RecPlex lot on a weekday when nothing was happening at the ball field.  But I think the good 

balance of this is there’s times when they need it that we don’t need it, when we need it they 

don’t need it.  I think if we’re able to stage that area so that it could be used by Amtrak as an 

Amtrak stop, for the people that live in the Village that commute down there, people that come up 

to the events in Pleasant Prairie will be able to use the train rather than overload the existing 

parking we have by coming up that way.  And that won’t happen next year or the year after, but I 

think it puts us in a position to leverage that spot for a train stop with Amtrak.  I think almost 

every business we’ve talked to that’s located in the corporate park from Abbott to any of them, 

Uline, that’s like a key facility that they’d like to have in place is some train stop from either the 

Milwaukee run or Chicago. 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

One other thing to add to that, too, the facility will be designed to handle potential bus traffic as 

well.  I mean there’s potential.  And, again, it might not happen overnight, but like with the 

Freeway Flyer or Badger Bus or whatever, the traffic circulation will be designed to handle that.  

So it truly will be a multimodal facility. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

I’ve got a question concerning this parking lot.  I know we need it, definitely we need it.  But my 

question is who is going to be responsible to patrol that?  It’s going to be next to a State road, 

165.  What I can see here there’s going to be three access - frontage road to the park.  Who is 

responsible to police the area to make sure everything is going normal.  People park for two 

weeks over there.  That’s what I’m concerned about. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

The same people who are responsible for patrolling the entire Village now, the Village.  I mean 

the police department has to patrol our own lots where they’re parking already. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Okay, I’m happy with that.  Because I don’t want the County getting [inaudible] in this.  That’s 

what I don’t like. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Steve, you have to understand this is in the jurisdiction of Pleasant Prairie.  The County can patrol 

anywhere they want in the whole County if they wish. 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

20 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

But that’s our area. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

They’ll be calling Pleasant Prairie Police Department for any help. 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

But generally I think the Village is going to be maintaining it.  It will be our facility really in 

effect. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

I want to make sure of that. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Okay, we need a motion. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Motion to approve. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Clyde, second by Steve.  Any further discussion?   

 

 ALLEN MOVED TO APPROVE A STATE/MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT FOR THE 

PROPOSED KENOSHA COUNTY/PLEASANT PRAIRIE PARK AND RIDE LOT LOCATED 

ON TERWALL TERRACE IN PRAIRIE SPRINGS PARK; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; 

MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

I. Consider a Professional Construction Related Services Agreement for the Prairie 

Ridge West Development Sanitary Sewer Staking. 
 

Mike Spence: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, the Prairie Ridge West development as shown on the 

drawing there is a 9.2 acre site.  It’s located just south of Highway 50 and west of the existing 

Olive Garden Restaurant there.  This development is proposed to be subdivided into four lots for 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

21 

the potential development of two restaurants and two other commercial buildings which could be 

retail or other office use.  Three of the lots are proposed to be served by public sanitary sewer.  

The public sanitary sewer construction work will consist of approximately 396 feet of 8 inch 

sanitary sewer, some sanitary manholes and two laterals.  As being a public facility we will be 

involved in the construction staking and the as-built survey as well as construction and 

inspection.   

 

The agreement that you have before you is with Crispell-Snyder of Lake Geneva to perform some 

construction staking and some limited inspection services.  It’s approximately $2,200.  The 

Village  engineering staff will actually be doing the inspection on the project.  And Crispell-

Snyder has done this type of work for us in the past.  So I’m recommending approval of the 

contract with Crispell-Snyder to perform these construction services for us.  And would be glad to 

answer any questions. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Do we have a motion and a second? 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

So moved. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Steve, second by Monica.  Further questions for Mike?   

 

 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL CONSTRUCTION 

RELATED SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH CRISPELL-SNYDER, INC. FOR THE PRAIRIE 

RIDGE WEST DEVELOPMENT SANITARY SEWER STAKING PROJECT; SECONDED BY 

YUHAS; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

J. Consider Ordinance #13-07 to amend Chapter 370 of the Municipal Code relating to 

adoption of codes and electrical contractor licensing. 
 

Mike Spence: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, before you we have some miscellaneous changes to 

Chapter 370 of the Village ordinance relating to the building and mechanical code.  The first 

change is basically some housekeeping.  The ordinance referred to the various standards from the 

Department of Commerce which was abbreviated COMM in our ordinance.  Currently that is 

now called the Department of Safety and Professional Services or SPS for short.  So we’ve gone 

through the ordinance and made those changes wherever COMM was referred to. 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

22 

 

The final change is a follow up of a change that we made at the last Board meeting regarding the 

elimination of Village electrical licenses.  The change before you tonight takes out the reference 

to requirement for Village electrical licenses.  There still are requirements for State electrical 

license, but we are not allowed, as I had indicated last time, to license contractors in the Village.  

They strictly go by the State license.  So I’m taking that language out of the ordinance.  And then 

finally the effective date on this ordinance will be April 1
st
 of this year. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

How do we -- I’m a little lost on this.  How do we Know who’s doing what by who if we don’t 

issue a license? 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

They still have to work at the Village to get the building permits and that and electrical 

inspections.  What this is saying is the contractor is going to be now licensed, and we can ask to 

verify that, they currently are licensed by the State, it’s just that in the past we required them to be 

licensed by the Village, too.  We can no longer do that. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

It’s the difference between a money permit where you charge a fee and you get a permit at the 

State and a background permit that you get from the Village.  So you go on line and send your fee 

in to the State for your electric license and you’re done.  And what the Village had done is work 

through the quality of some contractors you had to exhibit that you knew what you were doing.  

So that part of the equation is gone.  They pay their money and get their license. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

I’ll make a motion to approve Ordinance 13-07. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Monica, second by Steve.  Any further discussion?   

 

 YUHAS MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE #13-07 TO AMEND CHAPTER 370 OF THE 

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO ADOPTION OF CODES AND ELECTRICAL 

CONTRACTOR LICENSING; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

January 21, 2013 

 

 

23 

K. Consider Operator License Applications on file. 
 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

There’s three of them tonight.  All of them check out just fine.  Amber Fuller, Jessica Gornik and 

Mr. Haq. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Motion to approve. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Clyde, second by Mike for approval.  Any further discussion?   

 

 ALLEN MOVED TO APPROVE OPERATOR LICENSES FOR AMBER FULLER, 

JESSICA GORNIK AND IJAZ HAQ; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

7. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS 
 

Michael Serpe: 

 

We’re saving a lot of money on salt. 

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY YUHAS; MOTION 

CARRIED 5-0 AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:00 P.M. 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION #13-04 

RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE DISCONTINUANCE OF 93rd STREET BETWEEN 
LAKESHORE DRIVE AND 3RD AVENUE 

IN THE CAROL BEACH ESTATES SUBDIVISION UNIT NO. 5A 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

The Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, 
pursuant to Section 66.1003 of the Wisconsin Statutes, may initiate the discontinuance in whole 
or in part of any road, street, slip, lane or alley by the introduction of a resolution declaring that 
the public interest requires it. 

WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie has received a request from the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (WI DNR) for the discontinuance of 93rd Street between 
Lakeshore Drive and 3rd Avenue, which has been designated as a public right-of-way on the Final 
Plat of the Carol Beach Estates Subdivision Unit No. 5A; and 

WHEREAS, the WI DNR owns the vacant lands abutting this portion of 93rd Street and is 
requesting that the street be discontinued and removed to link the adjoining blocks that support 
several threatened and endangered plant species by creating more contiguous habitat that will 
benefit these species; and  

WHEREAS, a plat of survey and legal description of the public street encompassing the 
discontinuance has been prepared and is shown on Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Maps 30 and 32 in the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning 
Commission (SEWRPC) report entitled “A Land Use Management Plan for the Chiwaukee Prairie-
Carol Beach area of the Town of Pleasant Prairie” this portion of 93rd Street is proposed to be 
vacated or discontinued when all of the adjacent properties are owned by a public entity; and 

WHEREAS, municipal sanitary sewer, water and storm sewer infrastructure were not 
constructed within said right-of-way; and  

WHEREAS, upon removal of the gravel roadway, the WI DNR intends to maintain a moves 
pathway within the discontinued right-of-way for a pedestrian walkway; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie Plan Commission shall review said legal 
description and plat of survey and forward a recommendation regarding the discontinuance to the 
Village Board; and 

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing to consider this discontinuance shall be set before the Village 
Board not less than 40 days after the passage of this Resolution. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that consideration of the discontinuance is a matter to be 
decided by the Village Board of Trustees at the March 18, 2013 Public Hearing. 

Adopted this 4th day of February, 2013. 

        VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
 
 

______________________________ 
John P. Steinbrink 

ATTEST:      Village President 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jane M. Romanowski 
Village Clerk 



pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text



LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF 93RD STREET RUNNING NORTHWESTERLY FROM 

LAKESHORE DRIVE LYING BETWEEN BLOCK 49 AND 50 OF CAROL BEACH 

ESTATES UNIT NO5A : 

 

Part of Sections 18, 19, and 20, Town 1 North, Range 23 East of the Fourth Principal 

Meridian, lying and being in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin also 

being part of BLOCKS 49 and 50 of CAROL BEACH ESTATES UNIT NO. 5A, a plat of 

record and on file at the Kenosha County Land Registry and being more particularly 

described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the northeast corner of LOT 14 of the aforesaid BLOCK 49; which corner is 

on the west line of LAKESHORE DRIVE; thence S00°02’20”E along and upon said west 

line, 87.30 feet and to a point of curve in said west line, which point is the point of beginning 

of parcel hereinafter described: thence south-westerly along and upon the north line of 93rd 

Street, which line is the arc of a circularly curve concave to the northwest, 39.27 feet, said 

curve having a central angle of 90°00’00”, a radius of 25.00 feet and a chord which bears 

S44°57’40”W 35.36 feet and to the end of said curve; thence continue northwesterly along 

and upon said north line, which line is the arc of a circular curve concave to the north, 179.47 

feet, said curve having a central angle of 46°21’41”, a radius of 221.80 feet and a chord 

which bears N66°51’29.5”W 174.62 feet and to the end of said curve; thence continue 

N43°40’39”W along and upon said north line, 129.08 feet and to a point of curve in the north 

line of aforesaid 93rd Street; thence northwesterly along and upon said north line, which line 

is the arc of a circular curve concave to the northeast, 254.45 feet, said curve having a central 

angle of 50°03’48”, a radius of 291.21 feet and a chord which bears N18°37’45”W 246.43 

feet and to the end of said curve; thence N06°23’09”E 95.69 feet and to a point 4.19 feet 

S06°23’09”W from the northwest corner of LOT 18 in the aforesaid Block 49; thence 

southwesterly along and upon the east line of 3rd Avenue, said east line is the arc of a circular 

curve concave to the west, 224.03 feet, said curve having a central angle of 44°03’49”, a 

radius of 291.30 feet and a chord which bears S28°25’04”W 218.55 feet and to a point of 

curve in the east line of the aforesaid 93rd Street; thence northeasterly along and upon the 

south line of said 93rd Street, 50.91 feet, which line is the arc of a circular curve concave to 

the southeast, said curve having a central angle of 116°40’11”, a radius of 25.00 feet and a 

chord which bears S71°12’56.5”E 42.56 feet and to the end of said curve; thence 

southeasterly along and upon said south line, 188.73 feet, which line is the arc of a circular 

curve concave to northeast, said having a central angle of 30°47’24”, a radius of 351.21 feet 

and a chord which bears S28°16’57”E 186.47 feet; thence S43°40’39”E along and upon said 

south line, 129.08 feet and to a point of curve in the south line of the aforesaid 93rd Street; 

thence southeasterly along and upon said south line, 228.02 feet, which line is the arc of a 

circular curve concave to the northeast, said curve having a central angle of 46°21’41”, radius 

of 281.80 feet and a chord which bears S66°51’29.5”E 221.85 feet and to the end of said 

curve; thence southeasterly along and upon said south line 39.27 feet, which line is the arc of 

a circular curve concave to the southwest, said curve having a central angle of 90°00’00”, a 

radius of 25.00 feet and a chord which bears S45°02’20”E 35.36 feet and to the end of said 

curve and the west line of Lakeshore Drive; thence N00°02’20”W along and upon said west 

line, 110.00 feet and to the point of beginning. Containing 0.87 acres, more or less. Subject to 

easements and restrictions of record. 





RECOMMENDED LAND USE MANAGEMENT PLAN 
FOR THE CHIWAUKEE PRAIRIE-CAROL BEACH AREA 

&waw-&Wiw 

N81W * m u  FOR reg?mmn *&GlUrr 

r*CW''-rl,W~firn asmeois 

.-r 
m.rvorsra  UTILIW $D11*r&-; 

- .  
m 

Map 30 

LAND USE WlTHLN THE PROPOSED OPEN SPACE 
PRESERVATION AREA IDENTIFIED 

IN THE RECOMMENDED LAND USE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

BIAPUJC SCALE 



Map 32 

STREET RIGHTS-OF-WAY PROPOSED 
TO BE VACATED UNDER THE RECOMMENDED 

LAND USE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Source: SEWRPC. 



 

     

                     
9915 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158  262.948.8951   FAX 262.925-6786 

M E M O 
 

Office of the Village Engineer 

Michael Spence, P.E. 

Office of the Village Engineer 

Michael Spence, P.E., LEED
®

AP 

      

     TO:  Mike Pollocoff, Village Administrator 

 

     CC:  John Steinbrink, Jr., Public Works Director 

  Jane Romanowski, Village Clerk 

 

FROM: Mike Spence, Village Engineer 

  

 DATE: January 29, 2013 

 

   SUBJ: Professional Engineering Services Agreement-Crispell Snyder 

  Design Services for Chateau Eau Plaines-Phase 1 Stormwater Improvements 

 

 

The Village has been undertaking efforts to address the historic flooding within Chateau Eau Plaines 

Subdivision and surrounding areas. Crispell-Snyder, Inc. was previously hired to develop preliminary 

concepts for correction of these problems.  
 

The Village investigated possible grants to pay for the needed improvements completely or as much as 

possible. It was determined that the best possible funding mechanism would be a grant from the State’s 

Hazardous Mitigation Grant Program. A preliminary plan was developed and costs were estimated. In 

addition, all of the information that was provided by the residents on previous flooding damages was 

compiled so that a cost-benefit analysis could be performed to determine if the benefits outweighed the 

proposed project costs. The total project cost is estimated at $651,000. 

 

The grant was submitted to the State on August 20, 2012. The State Hazard Mitigation Office has 

completed their review of the Village’s application. The State received 8 grants that met eligibility 

requirements totaling $3,780,028; while only having $2,169,413 available in funding.  Based on the 

funding available, the State submitted 5 planning grants (for updating local hazard mitigation plans) 

totaling $96,869.  In addition, the State submitted two projects totaling $1,969,755.  Unfortunately 

Pleasant Prairie was not one of those projects.  However the State is submitting the Village project to 

FEMA along with two other projects. This is in the event that funds would become available (i.e., one of 

the other projects fall through for some reason or there are unspent funds on approved projects.)   

 

The three projects that will be submitted to FEMA by the Hazardous Mitigation Grant Program in 

future declarations or in the Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program if and when it is announced and funds 

are available. 

 

 



 

     

                     
9915 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158  262.948.8951   FAX 262.925-6786 

M E M O 
 

Office of the Village Engineer 

Michael Spence, P.E. 

Office of the Village Engineer 

Michael Spence, P.E., LEED
®

AP 

 

The need to address flooding issues in the Chateau area has not gone away. The Village can proceed with 

this project without grant funding. Funding sources may include: clean water utility budget, capital 

improvement budgets and local assessments. What this means to the residents is that there will be a 

resident stake (assessment) in the cost allocation to complete the project should the Village and residents 

agree to move forward with the project without grant funding. 

 

No matter which way the funding source evolves, the design needs to be completed so it is either ready 

for grant application or self-funding by the Village. The first phase (approximately $210,000 construction 

costs) will include the design of a storm pipe and swale between 112
th

 and 115
th

 Avenues to eliminate a 

bottleneck in the stormwater flow system that discharges to the Kilbourn Road ditch and reduce 

floodplain expansion in the subdivision. In the meantime the Village will also continue to monitor grant 

availability. 
 
Consequently, I have requested a proposal from Crispell-Snyder to design the first phase of improvements. 

The scope  includes the following: 

 Wetland delineation; 

 Survey; 

 Construction plans and specifications; 

 WDNR and ACOE Permitting; 

 Applicable temporary and permanent easement documents; 

 Assist with assessment schedules 

 

Crispell-Snyder has the professional qualifications to complete this project in a timely and cost 

effective manner. They have the benefit of having prepared the preliminary design concepts and are 

familiar with the stormwater issues faced by the residents. The fee for these services is $30,600.  I am 

asking the Board to approve the Contract for Professional Engineering Services for Crispell-Snyder 

for a lump sum cost of $30,600. 
 

           































 

9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.694.1400  FAX 262.694.4734 

 

DRAWN UNDER TALMER BANK AND TRUST 

AS SUCCESSOR INTEREST TO FIRST BANKING CENTER 

IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. 37351600001 

DATED 02-07-2012 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN) 

    ) SS: 

COUNTY OF KENOSHA) 

 

Michael R. Pollocoff, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says as follows: 

 

1. I am the Village Administrator of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin (the Village). 

 

2. The Village Board of Trustees, at a meeting duly held on the 4th day of February, 2013, 

2010, duly approved a draw upon Talmer Bank and Trust as successor interest to First 

Banking Center Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. 37351600001 dated February 7, 2012 in the 

amount of US $69,321.38 (Sixty-nine Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-one and 38/100 U.S. 

Dollars). 

 

        Village of Pleasant Prairie 

 

 

        ________________________________ 

        Michael R. Pollocoff 

        Village Administrator 

        Village of Pleasant Prairie  

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 

this 4th day of February, 2013. 

 

_____________________________ 

Notary Public, Kenosha Co., WI 

My commission expires __________ 

 

        ATTEST: 

 

 

        ________________________________ 

        Jane M. Romanowski 

        Village Clerk 

        Village of Pleasant Prairie  



 

9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.694.1400  FAX 262.694.4734 

 

DRAWN UNDER TALMER BANK AND TRUST 

AS SUCCESSOR INTEREST TO FIRST BANKING CENTER 

IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. 37351600006 

DATED 02-07-2012 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN) 

    ) SS: 

COUNTY OF KENOSHA) 

 

Michael R. Pollocoff, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says as follows: 

 

1. I am the Village Administrator of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin (the Village). 

 

2. The Village Board of Trustees, at a meeting duly held on the 4th day of February, 2013, 

2010, duly approved a draw upon Talmer Bank and Trust as successor interest to First 

Banking Center Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. 37351600006 dated February 7, 2012 in the 

amount of US $17,000.00 (Seventeen Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars). 

 

        Village of Pleasant Prairie 

 

 

        ________________________________ 

        Michael R. Pollocoff 

        Village Administrator 

        Village of Pleasant Prairie  

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 

this 4th day of February, 2013. 

 

_____________________________ 

Notary Public, Kenosha Co., WI 

My commission expires __________ 

 

        ATTEST: 

 

 

        ________________________________ 

        Jane M. Romanowski 

        Village Clerk 

        Village of Pleasant Prairie  



 

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION OF 

 BARTENDER LICENSE APPLICATIONS 

    Period Ending: January 29, 2013 

 

 

I, Jane M. Romanowski, Village Clerk of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, 

Wisconsin, do hereby certify the following persons have applied for bartender licenses and each 

applicant is in compliance with the guidelines set forth in Chapter 194 of the Municipal 

Code.  I recommend approval of the applications for each person as follows:  

 

NAME OF APPLICANT    LICENSE TERM 

 

1. Bhinder P. Singh    thru June 30, 2014 

       

  

      

 

 

 

 

Jane M. Romanowski 

Village Clerk     

 

 

 


	Agenda - February 4 2013
	Minutes - January 7 2013
	Minutes - January 21 2013
	7A. Resolution 13-04 93rd St Discontinuance
	Exhibit A Res #13-04
	Request
	Maps 29-30
	Map 32 Chiwaukee Prairie Plan

	7B. Prof Service Agreement - Chateau Phase 1 Storwater project
	Prof Services Agr Chateau Phase 1 Stormwater Project

	7C. RecPlex Fitness Center Sponsorship Agreement
	7D.  Westfield Development Letters of Credit Draws
	Westfield Draw on LOC 3735100001
	Westfield Draw on LOC 3735100006

	7E. Opeartor License Memo 2-4-13



